
page 1 of 6 

  City of West Lafayette, Indiana 
Board of Public Works and Safety 

MINUTES 
 

February 5, 2008 
11:00 a.m. 

City Hall Lower Level Conference Room 
 
 
 
 

I. PRE-CAUCUS 
Agenda items were discussed among Board members and Department Heads. 

 
Ms. Goldman asked whether the City was self-insured for dental and vision 
insurance coverage.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes explained that there is a policy for 
vision, but the dental coverage is different.  Human Resources Director Foster 
explained that the vision coverage is fully insured, but the dental is an ASO 
(Administrative Services Only) agreement, in which the City pays an administrative 
fee and also pays claims.  Ms. Foster said it is her belief that the City will save quite 
a bit of money by doing this. The contract is through Guardian who also has our fully-
insured vision policy.  Claims are adjudicated the same way, so employees don’t see 
any difference from prior years, but the City receives two bills.  Ms. Rhodes noted 
that no bills have been received this year.  Ms. Foster said that they were mailed to 
the City last week.  In response to Ms. Rhodes’ inquiry as to whether the bills were 
available sent electronically, Ms. Foster responded that the electronic version didn’t 
look right.  She will wait for the paper copy and check that. 
 

      II.         APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. January 29, 2008, Meeting 
Mr. Marley moved to accept the minutes of the January 29, 2008, Board of Works 
meeting.  Ms. Goldman seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted. 
 

III. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Green Meadows Lift Station and Force Main Improvements Project Bid 
Acceptance - WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said that he had previously provided Greeley & 
Hansen’s review of the eight bids received for the Green Meadows Lift Station and 
Force Main Improvements Project.  The low bid, which he concurs with, is from 
Infrastructure Systems, Inc. of Orleans, Indiana, for $976,166.  He presented the 
certificate of liability insurance, the performance bond, and the contract.  City 
Attorney Burns asked whether the City has worked with Infrastructure Systems 
before, and Mr. Downey responded that we have.  He reported that the work they 
have done for the City is two lift stations, one in Arbor Chase and one in Barbarry.  
They’ve done an excellent job.  Mr. Downey asked the Board to enter into a contract 
with Infrastructure Systems, Inc.  Mr. Burns noted that the contract is in proper order, 
from a legal standpoint. 

 
Ms. Goldman moved that the bid for the Green Meadows Lift Station and Force Main 
Improvements Project be accepted.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion. Mr. Marley 

Internet
Text Box
                 Approved at the February 12, 2008, Board of Works meeting.



WEST LAFAYETTE BOARD OF WORKS MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2008, MINUTES 

page 2 of 6 

said the one thing he noticed in comparing the bids, it looks like there’s a submission 
of a financial statement by each of these contractors, but a question he has is who 
reviews the financial statements for their qualifications.  Mr. Downey said that 
Greeley & Hansen does, and he looks them over briefly.  Mr. Marley asked for 
confirmation of his understanding that Greeley & Hansen basically underwrites the 
financial qualifications of the contractors, and in addition to that, there is a 
performance bond by Travelers.  Mr. Downey said yes. 

 
The motion was adopted. 

 
B. Construction Contract 
Mr. Marley moved to execute the construction contract for the Green Meadows Lift 
Station and Force Main Improvements Project.  Ms. Goldman seconded the motion.  
The motion was adopted. 
 
C. WWTU Overview 
Mr. Downey provided an overview of the Wastewater Treatment Utility.  The major 
project that is digester renovation with alternative power, which is under construction, 
with M.D. Wessler and Mr. Downey overseeing the construction project.  The 
contractor on that project is Bowen Engineering who does excellent work.  The other 
major project underway is the Western Interceptor.  The first phase has been 
completed by Atlas Excavating, with Greeley & Hansen overseeing.  The second 
phase is under construction now.  Atlas was low bidder with Greeley & Hansen 
overseeing it.  There will be third and fourth phases.  The third phase will begin 
possibly in the next two months, which will cover the area from Intramural Drive to 
the Wastewater Plant.  The only section that will be left will be where US 231 goes 
between Married Student Courts and the airport.  We don’t know when INDOT is 
going to do that part of the construction, despite discussions with INDOT since 1990.  
The Western Interceptor is the last piece of the City’s Long-Term Control Plan, which 
is part of the NPDES permit with IDEM.  The permit is required to keep the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant open; both IDEM and the EPA have to approve the 
permit.  Part of that approval is that the City must control its CSOs, of which the City 
has four.  Basically, CSOs are to be shut off or reduced in some manner, and the 
Western Interceptor should do that.  That Long-Term Control Plan was submitted 
back in 1990.  IDEM failed to approve not only the City’s Long-Term Control Plan, 
but many Indiana communities’ plans.  Ms. Goldman asked the reason, and Mr. 
Downey responded that it probably was the shortage of manpower.  The EPA put 
pressure on IDEM to resolve the Long-Term Control Plans. The EPA prefers a 
judicial agreement.  The City plan was approved in October 2007.  IDEM wanted to 
put many other restrictions on the 20-year Control Plan that the City had submitted 
back in 1990.  Through many meetings, we got them to agree to let us finish the 
Long-Term Control Plan.  On February 15, Mr. Downey has a meeting with IDEM to 
discuss some changes to the NPDES permit, which involves CSO overflow points.  
Our permit is reviewed every five years, and we have three years left on this, so 
IDEM is approaching to alter our NPDES permit.  Mr. Burns and others will sit down 
and try to work out some type of agreement.  We have approximately 20 years to 
finish the Western Interceptor, and that was agreed to by the fact that INDOT could 
not tell IDEM when that project was going to happen.  Along with the permit, we are 
to have power backup for every lift station.  The Long-Term Control Plan will 
eliminate three lift stations, so those won’t have power backup.  Last year, Barbarry 
Lift Station was finished, which put more force main in place, but also put power 



WEST LAFAYETTE BOARD OF WORKS MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2008, MINUTES 

page 3 of 6 

backup.  That project was approximately $1 million.  Of that, we have a grant from 
the EPA that paid 60%.  The Green Meadows Lift Station is worse than Barbarry, in 
that sanitary sewer overflows [SSOs] are far worse than combined sewer overflows 
[CSOs].  The project just approved by the Board will take care of that.  A larger force 
main and power backup will be in place for that lift station.  We are fortunate that we 
will have another EPA grant that will cover 60% of the construction costs.  We’re 
doing better than most communities.  Mayor Dennis asked about the business side.  
Mr. Downey reported that revenue is good.  He will provide a report showing 
revenue.  Mayor Dennis mentioned that the volume going through the Plant is 
extremely high.  Mr. Burns said that the numbers have been reported in thousands of 
billions of gallons; apparently they didn’t want to use the word “trillions.”  Mr. Downey 
reported that, on an average basis, we run 9.6 million gallons per day through the 
Plant.  In a wet season, we put as much as 32 million per day from the CSOs and the 
North River Road Interceptor.  The North River Road Interceptor runs along the river, 
and there are a number of manholes through there.  Mr. Downey said our bank 
account looks pretty hefty right now, but just to do that, seal off those manholes, will 
be in excess of $2 million.  We’re working on plans to show you what that is and get 
that fixed, because we just can’t continue to take the rainwater in.  Another project 
that City Engineer Buck and I worked on last summer at Triple XXX and up South 
Street, is trying a surface that allows the rainwater to go directly back into the soils.  
Everything south of Meridian is basically a gravel pit, great soils.  So we don’t need 
to take the rainwater into the catchbasins and into the sewer and into the Plant and 
treat it.  The pavement is asphalt and concrete, and allows the rain to go into the soil.  
Mr. Marley asked whether the maintenance on the street is the same.  Mr. Downey 
we will find out, it should be.  Mr. Buck said that’s one of the concerns we have in 
this part of the country is the freeze-thaw cycles.  They’ve had success in Tennessee 
and they’ve had success in Minnesota, but we have more freeze-thaw cycles.  Mr. 
Downey said seven years ago, Louisville, down along the [Ohio] River, right around 
the courthouse square had a problem with CSOs, and they basically shut all their 
catchbasins off and went to this porous pavement.  They haven’t had a problem.  
They have the same soil type that we have up around Meridian and Dodge and 
Evergreen.  Mr. Downey explained that the area he is concentrating on to use the 
porous pavement technology is the campus area—University, Russell, Waldron, 
First, Second, and Third.  His big effort this summer is to close off the Dehart CSO.  
Mayor Dennis said last night in the State of the City, I mentioned the fact that it is 
probably the biggest business in Lafayette.  Mr. Marley said just the projects that we 
have online right now are valued at over $18 million.  Mr. Downey said with IDEM 
you have to have a five-year master plan, and you’ll have a contract for that to 
update that and bring it up to speed.  And, of course, I want to get out of the North 
River Road Interceptor and Dehart CSO.  One thing that scares me more than 
anything is that IDEM started requiring that we do mercury level analyses on the 
water.  We just started that, which increased our laboratory fees quite substantially.  
I’m afraid of what IDEM will make us to.  In response to an inquiry from Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Downey said there are no levels established for mercury here.  Parks 
Superintendent Payne said pointed out that a lot of what the WWTU does helps the 
community in a bigger picture with the quality of life.  Some of the trails have been 
built to provide access for WWTU maintenance trucks, river access was improved at 
Mascouten with the North River Road lift station project, and trails and the entire 
quality of Tapawingo Park have also been improved. Mr. Payne said we try to work 
together to tie in, because that’s where the big money is.  We can do it without 
costing any extra money, it’s a good deal for everyone.  Mr. Downey we can’t put 



WEST LAFAYETTE BOARD OF WORKS MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2008, MINUTES 

page 4 of 6 

trails in, but we can put maintenance roads to get to each one of those manholes.  
Because one of the IDEM requirements is that we must televise and clean every inch 
of sewer line that you have in the City.  And that has to be done on a five-year basis.  
That’s in excess of $600,000 to clean and televise it.  I’ve got a truck with a camera 
on it that you paid $165,000 for.  I’ve got two sewer vacs, basically big trucks that 
clean these lines, at $265,000 each.  Mr. Marley asked how long the trucks last.  Mr. 
Downey said he’d been stretching them out for about seven years, but most 
communities will get rid of them in three or three-and-a-half years.  Mr. Downey 
commented that Purdue maintains their own sewer system.  So everything that we 
have to do, they have to do.  So they have a camera, a sewer vac, and they maintain 
their own.  They must reduce the volume of stormwater going in to the catchbasins.  
Mr. Marley asked if Purdue has a different rate, even though we process everything 
they send us.  Mr. Downey yes, they pay for the process.  Their rate is a little bit 
different, but not much.  They did have a 10% discount two years ago, which expired.  
Mr. Downey said he expects Purdue will come back to the City shortly and ask for 
another discount. Purdue had a consultant lay out why they deserved a discount 
previously, based on loss between the wellhead, where they pump their own water, 
and their buildings.  Part of the agreement for a discount was that Purdue would 
meter each building. Mr. Burns said this was an I&I (Infiltration and Inflow) problem, 
which is leakage into the pipes.  Mr. Downey there’s a lot of that at Purdue and 
elsewhere.  Mr. Burns asked if anything can be done.  Mr. Downey said they do 
everything possible to deal with it. Operational costs include searching for I&I, trying 
to seal it off, make repairs where needed, grout joints, and line pipes.  Mr. Burns said 
when the groundwater seeps into that pipe, you’re treating groundwater.  Mr. 
Downey the North River Road Interceptor is really bad for I&I, especially when the 
river comes above six feet because all the manholes are between SR 43 North and 
the river.  That’s the way they used to build it.  The trunk line going up Happy Hollow 
back in ’98 or ’99, but that was all lined and grouted, so that sealed off a lot of it 
coming in to the lift stations.   
 

IV.       NEW BUSINESS 
A. WWTU SRF Payment Request No. 7 – WWTU Digester Renovation - $32,500 – 
M. D. Wessler & Associates 
Mr. Marley moved to approve the SRF Payment Request No. 7.  Ms. Goldman  
seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Marley asked about the line item for $700,000 original contract.  The invoice  
dated January 18 shows $650,000, and he asked why there was the difference.  Mr. 
Downey said he will check, although there shouldn’t have been any change.  Mr. 
Marley asked about the allowance on Change Orders and his understanding that 
there’s an allowance in any project budget for contingencies.  Mr. Downey said we 
can’t exceed 10%.  Mr. Burns said you can’t exceed 20% on a Change Order, but 
you usually have 10% as a contingency.  Mr. Marley said I think the Barbarry Lift 
Station had 12% in Change Orders, and then the last one was the collection system 
master plan by Greeley and Hansen, and that was 76%.  Mr. Marley asked the 
reason for the increase.  Mr. Buck said that was engineering, which is not subject to 
the 20%; it’s just construction you can’t go over 20%.  Mr. Downey said and that was 
due to the fact of the SJA agreement with some extra flow models they needed.  Mr. 
Burns asked what SJA was.  Mr. Downey said State Judicial Order.  That’s the 
agreement on our Long-Term Control Plan.  Mr. Marley said we have to do that, and 
they’re the entity that does that for us, and that’s what’s costing, and we really don’t 



WEST LAFAYETTE BOARD OF WORKS MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2008, MINUTES 

page 5 of 6 

have any choice.  Mr. Downey said you have a choice of getting somebody else to 
do that, but it’s a requirement of our permit and of the State and of EPA.  Mr. Burns 
said so they have a unit price for their time?  Mr. Downey said yes.  Mr. Burns asked 
whether that was a competitive rate and whether that should be reviewed.  Mr. 
Downey said the scope changed three times.  Mr. Burns said we’re really not 
comparing apples to apples.  Mr. Buck said a lot of times, on an engineering services 
agreement or design of a specific project, it’s a best-guess estimate when you start 
out. Then as major changes in scope to an agreement occur, fees are based on 
tracking of those man-hours as they use that time.  And if they stay under or go over, 
there is a supplemental agreement at the end that we go over, to justify and approve 
those additional amounts.  But if they stay under, then they didn’t need that much 
time.  Mr. Marley said on the Barbarry Lift Station, it looks like we were 12%, and 
that’s within 20% on construction.  I’m just trying to figure out how we hold these 
contractors to the parameters that we’ve given them.  Mr. Downey responded that 
between the engineering firm to oversee the project and myself, the reason the 10% 
went over was due to driveways that were required out of scope and landscaping.  
Mr. Burns asked if that were a design issue on the front end.  Mr. Downey responded 
that it could have been, but basically as they were going down through there and 
working on it, we got into things we could not have foreseen.  Mr. Buck said 10% is 
just the goal; we’re allowed 20%. We’d hoped to have 0% or even have some 
deducts that would bring us in under original contract.  When conditions change in 
the field and you want to do things right, we will come and ask for permission to 
approve that at that time.  Some things can’t wait, like someone getting sewage in 
their yard or something like that, we have to spend a little money to stop that.  Mr. 
Burns said when you think about those lines cutting down the street, cutting off every 
single driveway, taking out mailboxes, taking out all the plantings, it would be a very 
hard thing to predict.  Mr. Downey our goal on every project is to come under; 
sometimes it doesn’t work out.  Mr. Marley apologized for asking so many questions, 
but he stated he’s trying to figure out how we keep the estimates in bounds, and 
what we can do to help ourselves.  Mr. Downey said on the Green Meadows Lift 
Station, we allowed $20,000 for landscaping, knowing that Purdue would be 
involved.  The same thing on Phase II of the contract, we allowed money in there, 
because we were dealing with Purdue University and trees.  They made me count 
every tree above four inches in diameter, and for every inch of diameter that we 
removed, we have to pay back inch for inch.  I took down a 50-inch oak and I took 
down a 78-inch sycamore.  Mr. Burns asked who set those prices.  Mr. Downey said 
Purdue.  Mr. Buck said the contractor set the prices in his bid.  Mr. Downey said you 
want to remember that Purdue is not charging the City for any easements, and 
you’re taking over six miles of easement for the Western Interceptor.  Mr. Burns said 
we’re coming out way ahead on that; that’s not even close.   
 
The motion was adopted. 
 
B. Grant of Temporary Easement for Green Meadows Lift Station Project - WWTU 
Mr. Downey presented a temporary easement for the Board to sign.  The agreement 
is with Purdue Research Foundation for the Green Meadows Lift Station Project.  
Using a map, Mr. Downey pointed out the area for the temporary easement.  This 
easement is for the contractor to move its backhoe and other equipment.  Mr. David 
Kovich owns most of the lots, and there are no houses on them.  There are a couple 
of lots with homes where perhaps boring through will be done.  Mr. Kovich wants 
wildflowers and prairie grasses put back.  Mr. Downey pointed out a bean field which 



WEST LAFAYETTE BOARD OF WORKS MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2008, MINUTES 

page 6 of 6 

is in the path of the project.  If the contractor is not finished in this area by May 1, 
then there will be liquidated damages, payment of which is not in the construction 
contract.  Mr. Burns noted that the easement is in correct legal form. 
 
Ms. Goldman moved to approve the easement.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion.  
The motion was adopted. 
 
C. Approval of Claims 

1. PR Docket  $106,582.11 
2. PR Docket  $  12,340.20 
3. PR Docket  $292,523.63 
4. AP Docket  $  10,560.11 
5. AP Docket  $    1,734.73 
6. AP Docket  $225,523.89 
7. AP Docket  $  82,124.91 

 
Ms. Goldman moved that the claims be approved.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion.   

 
Mr. Marley noted that there were some payments for the Perimeter Parkway Project, 
and asked about the larger project, whether there was a detailed schedule of values.  
Mr. Buck responded that this is a federal-aid effort.  We’re getting 80% money 
administered through INDOT from the Federal Highway Administration.  We’re 
submitting claims and reimbursement vouchers to INDOT, to get that 80% money, to 
put it into the account that was actually heard last night at Council, to the Perimeter 
Parkway Fund, and then we’re paying those invoices in full with our local portion—
10% Purdue, 10% West Lafayette, for the 20% local, and then the 80% check that 
we get for each invoice.  So that’s probably the latest invoice that’s come back, with 
our share coming out of those line items there for the Phase IA.  Mr. Marley asked if 
the Perimeter Project included all seven?  Mr. Buck answered yes, everything that’s 
there.  The preliminary study is pretty much done, it’s an open contract still, and 
some of that money may be utilized in the future for some outside effort, should there 
be a change in course in what the planning is.  But that’s not likely; we’ll probably 
close that out.  Phase IA is the main effort right now and everything we’re doing and 
working on is related.  In reference to the project sheet that Mr. Buck prepared, Mr. 
Marley thanked him for providing the big picture.  Mayor Dennis said that, as a rule, 
these project sheets are a good reference and provide understanding of the dollars 
being spent. 

 
The motion was adopted. 
 
D. Parks Update 
Parks Superintendent Payne informed the Board of the “Dare to Bare Polar Bear 
Skate” event on Friday night at 7:00 p.m. at the Riverside Skating Center. 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Goldman moved to 
adjourn the meeting at 11:42  a.m.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion, and the 
meeting adjourned. 

 




